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“ I have watched the wanderings of the human 
families in all ages. I have noticed the numerous colonie* 
they have formed in different parts of the world. I have 
l>een struck by the courage and adventure of the Gauls 
and the Romans when they took possession of new 
countries. I have watched the progress of the Greeks 
up the Black Sea, when they sought to extend their 
dominion, and when they landed on the islands of the 
West, and of the Tyrians when they took possession of 
Carthage. But, of all the bold efforts ever made to call 
civilization into existence, none ever exceeded the flaring 
enterprise of Lord Selkirk, when he planted a Colony on 
the Red River of the North."

ARCHDEACON JAMBS Hl'NTKK. M A.



THE VETERANS OF THE FUR TRADE
OR

The Retired Servants of The Hudson’s Bay Company.
To all whom it may concern :

At a meeting of the Veterans of 
the Fur Trade Association held in 
the office of A. 8. Stewart, Esq., in 
the City of Prince Albert on the 12th 
•September, 1905, the following reso­
lution was passed, viz.:
“That a pamphlet setting forth our 
claims be prepared as soon as possi­
ble by the Chairman."

In accordance with the above reso­
lution, I shall now attempt to give 
a statement of (a) the grant of land 
from the Hudson’s Bay Company to 
Lord Selkirk; (b) the grant of land 
that was set apart by the Hudson’s 
Bay Company and Thomas, Earl of 
Selkirk, for the retired servants of 
the Hudson’s Bay Company on the 
12th June, 1811, and (c) the Public 
Books of Assiniboia that were lost 
on the 24th August, 1870, the day 
that Sir Garnet Wolseley took pos­
session of Vpper Fort Garry.

In order that we may rightly un­
derstand the question we are about 
to deal with, we must raise the cur­
tain that hides the past history of 
this country and take a glance over 
the 59 years that preceded the trans­
fer of Rupert’s Land, the North- 
West Territories, and the District of 
Assiniboia, to Canada. We shall, 
therefore, commence at the year 1811. 
DEED OF 74,555,520 ACRES TO 

LORD SELKIRK
On the 12th June. 1811, the Hud­

son's Bay Company, under the au­

thority of the Royal Charter granted 
to them on the 2nd May, 1669 by 
King Charles the Second executed a 
deed in London, England, hy which 
they transferred to Thomas, Earl of 
Selkirk, a tract of land in this coun­
try, containing 116,49;t superficial 
miles, or 74,555,520 acres, exclusive 
of water. A portion of this land 
thus deeded now forms the Province 
of Manitoba, and another portion is 
included in the new Province of Sas­
katchewan. The Western boundary 
line as defined upon the map accom­
panying tne deed, runs through old 
Fort Carlton, in Saskatchewan.

One of the objects in view for con­
veying these lands to the Earl of 
Selkirk, was for the purpose of estab­
lishing a British colony in the coun­
try known thereafter as the District 
of Assiniboia.

In this deed of 1811 it was, and is, 
expressly provided that one-tenth of 
the said 74,555,520 acres be set 
apart for free grants, to he from time 
to time given to the retired servants 
of the Hudson’s Bay Company, settl­
ing in the country, the quantity of 
land to be given to such servant being 
according to his rank or grade in the 
service. In other words, the deed 
provided that nine-tenths of the land 
would belong to Lord Selkirk and his 
heirs forever, and one-tenth of the 
land would belong to the retired ser­
vants of the Hudson’s Bay Company, 
“and for no other use, intent or pur­
pose whatsoever."
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Out of this oue-tvnth of the grant 
to Selkirk, an ordinary laborer was 
entitled, after serving the Hudson’s 
Bay Company three years, to 200 
acres, while a master of a trading 
post, or one holding equal rank with 
him was entitled to 1000 acres.

After the granting of this deed in 
1811, when the Hudson's Bay Com­
pany were hiring servants, it was 
very often specified in their contracts 
that at the expiration of their term 
of service, a free grant of land would 
be given to each servant settling in 
the country, and many servants wen- 
hired and settled in the countty by 
reason of this inducement, Many 
such retired servants received their 
grants of land, and many did not, 
and have not to this day.

On the 18th July, 1817, Lord Sel­
kirk made a treaty with the Indians 
at the forks of the Red River, now 
the City of Winnipeg. By this treaty 
the Indians ceded to King George the 
Third, two miles deep on each side of 
the river, except at Fort Douglas 
and Fort Baer, where they ceded six 
miles, measuring from each fort on 
every side.

On the 8th April, 1820, Lord Sel­
kirk died at Pau, in France.

1 nder his will, dated 7th August, 
1810, and which will was proved, ap­
proved, and registered in the Prerog­
ative Court of Canterbury, on the 
6th June 1820, Lord Selkirk willed 
his migranted lands in the District 
of Assiniboia to his son Dunbar 
James Douglas, commonly known as 
Lord Daer, Lord Selkirk appointed 
eight persons as his executors, four 
of these refused to act, viz., Peter 
Wedderburn, Sir James Hall, Dugald 
Stewart, and Peter IMkett. On the 
1st July, 1820, these four executors 
above mentioned transferred their 
powers as executors to Sir James 
Montgomery, Adam Maitland, An­
drew Colville, and John , the

four acting executors.
On the 19th May, 1823, the acting 

executors of the will of Lord Selkirk 
appointed Sir George Simpson, then 
Governor of the Fur Trade in Rup­
ert’s Land, and Robert Parker Pelly, 
then Governor of the Fur Trade in 
the District of Assiniboia, Attorneys 
for the said executors, for the pur­
pose of granting or selling any part 
of Selkirk’s estate in the District of 
Assiniboia. These attorneys there­
after granted and sold lands in the 
District of Assiniboia in behalf of 
the estate of the said Thomas, Earl 
of Selkirk, and not as the property 
of the Hudson's Bay Company.

THE GOVERNMENT ( F ASSINI­
BOIA.

On the 1th September, 1812, peace­
able possession of the District of 
Assiniboia was granted by William 
Ilillivr, one of the attornies appoint­
ed for that purpose, to Miles Mac- 
donell, who was duly authorized to 
receive the same for the use of the 
Earl of Selkirk, his heirs and as­
signs according to the form and ef­
fect of the deed given by the Hud­
son's Bay Company on the 12th 
June. 181 i.

From the Ith September, 1812. up 
to the year 1835, the District of As­
siniboia was governed by a Governor 
appointed fn m time to time by the 
acting executors, with the help of a 
sullieient number of police.

In the \ear 1835 the settlers were 
asked by the attorney of the execu­
tors, Sir George Simpson, to help 
him to place the Government upon a 
different footing. There were at that 
time 5.000 people in the colony, in 
the District of Assiniboia. A Gov­
ernment was then formed, consisting 
of fifteen members, and known there­
after as “The Government of The 
Governor and Council of Assiniboia."JJ
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At this date Sir George Simpson’s 
tank in the Hudson’s Bay Company’s 
service was Governor-in-Chief of the 
Fur Trade of Rupert’s Land, hut by 
virtue of a power of attorney from 
Lord Selkirk’s executors he became 
the ( ivil Governor of the District of 
Assiniboia, and in his absence from 
Fort Garry he appointed from time 
to time in his stead, as Civil Gov­
ernor of Ass.nihoia, the Governor of 
the Hudson's Bay Co’s Fur Trade in 
Assiniboia, to which the people did 
not object.

We now come to a matter which 
should be of intense interest to every 
person in the Dominion of Canada, 
viz.:—

“The Hudson’s Bay Company have 
never been able to show a title from 
Thomas, Karl of Selkirk, or his exec­
utors, or their attorneys, or the 
heirs of Thomas, Karl of Selkirk, 
and None of them, as far as has been 
made known, to us, have at any time 
ever reconveyed the lands known as 
the Selkirk Kstate, or the District of 
Assiniboia, to the Hudson’s Bax 
Company.

That even if the District « f Assini­
boia, had been re-conveved to the 
Hudson’s Bay Company, such recon­
veyance would not deprive the rights 
or interests of retired servants ac­
quired by them before or after such 
reconveyance, Lord Selkirk could 
will only nine-tenths of the District 
of Assiniboia to his son Dunbar 
James Douglas, and as to ourselves, 
we who are the retired servants of 
the Hudson's Bay Company and the 
bona fide owners ol the land 
have never signed away the 
right to our land in the remain­
ing one-tenth part of the District of 
Assiniboia. Many or the retired ser­
vants of the Hudson’s Bay Company 
received their land but there are 
many who have become entitled to 
free grants out of the said one-tenth, 
so expressly reserved for them in the

District of Assiniboia, who have ne­
ver received the same.

I may mention here that in the 
year 1X21, tin* North West Company 
of Montreal having formed a coali­
tion with the Hudson’s Bay Company 
the su ernumeraries < f these two 
companies were drafted as settlers in 
the Red River Colony, and from time 
to time after that, the retired ser­
vants of the Hudson’s Bay Company 
«if various grades, received their lands 
and made “The District of Assini­
boia their Haven of Rest."

In dealing with this matter I am 
forced to cast some reflection on the 
Loi don Stock-Holders of the Hud­
son’s Bay Company.

As already stated, Sir George 
Simpson, one of the governors 
of the Hudson’s Bay Company’s 
Fur Trade, was made Attor­
ney for the executors of Lord Sel­
kirk in 1823. He died in 1860, thus 
acting as Attorney for a period of 37 
years. It is said that the Chinese have 
a way of dwarfing a pine tree till it 
will grow inside a flower pot. Sir 
George Simpson tried a similar pro­
cess with Lord Selkirk’s settlement.
Ilis policy as chief administrator was 
not f ir agricultural expansion, but he 
kept the farming community on as 
small an area of land as possible. 
While he expanded as far as he could 
in the District of Assiniboia, the Fur 
Trade interests of the Hudson’s Bay 
Company, on the other hand, he 
dwarfed as much as he could the col­
onization interests of the executors of 

"lie Lord Selkirk. Instead of giving to 
each retired servant of the Hudson’s 
Bay Company the quantity of land 
promised in the deed of 1811, with 
a few exceptions only, he gave free 
grants of 100 acres, 50 acres, and 
frequently only 25 acres, thus keep­
ing hack from the retired servants 
of the Hudson's Bay Company the
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actual quantity of land to which they 
were entitled. Mis usual manner of 
dealing with a person was as fol­
lows:—If it weie a three chain river 
lot that was to be parted with, the 
Attorney would make the retired ser­
vant purchase half of the lot at about 
seven shillings and six pence per acre, 
and the other hai* of the lot he would 
give as a fr»e grant, and this system 
was adopted by him for two reasons,
(a) To keep the Colony from expand­
ing ami hurting the fur trade, and
(b) To avoid having to ireat with 
the Indians for more lands, which 
would lead to the enlarging and ad­
vertising of the Red River Settle­
ment.

The writer saw the Red River Col­
ony for the first time on the 5th 
October 1857. In that year a num­
ber of servants who had been em­
ployed in the Hudson's Bay Com­
pany’s Fur Trade in Rupert’s Land, 
were retiring, and these servants 
with their wives and families came 
up to the District of Asiinihoia to 
receive the lands that had been pro­
mised to them in the one-t nth part 
of Lord Selkirk's estate. The writ­
er belonged to one of these families. 
The Hudson’s Bay Company’s license 
to trade over this country which 
they had received from King George, 
Third in 1821. expired in 1858. In 
that same year a petition from the 
Red River Settlers was introduced 
by the Duke of Newcastle, in the 
British House of Commons, asking 
for a better form of Government.

In 1850-18l»(l another petition from 
the Red River Settlers to the Legis­
lative Council and assembly of I'pper 
and Lower Canada, was introduced, 
asking fir annexation to Canada.

P1BLIC BOOKS
During the 59 years that preceeded 

lh*> transfer of this country to Cana­
da, there were public hooks, such as

land registers, maps and other re­
cords, that belonged to the people of 
the District of Assiniboia. These 
books, maps, etc., were not the pro­
perty of the Hudson’s Bay Company.

There was one book which 1 shall 
deal with particularly, viz: Register 
Book A. This book contained:—

1. An authenticated copy of the 
deed of land from the Hudson’s Bay 
Company to Lord Selkirk dated 12th 
•lune, 1811.

2. A map showing the lands deeded.
•L Copy of the treaty made hv Sel­

kirk with the Indians in 1817.
L A map showing the lands ceded.
5. Copies of Lord Selkirk’s two 

wills.
ti. Letters probate from, the Arch­

bishop of Canterbury.
7. Power of Attorney to Robert 

Parker Pell y and Sir George Simp­
son, and other documents.

Register A. was carefully guarded 
by the officer who for the time being 
was Governor of Assiniboia. It con­
tained Sir George Simpson’s author­
ity to administer Selkirk’s estate. 
This book has been handed down from 
one Governor to another. The last 
Governor of Assiniboia who had 
charge of it was Governor William 
McTavish. The late Dr. Bunn has 
also guarded Register A. for Sir 
George Simpson. The knowledge of 
the existence of this book, its con­
tents and the reason for its being 
guarded so closely was known to 
several of the retired servants of the 
Hudson’s Bay Company who had 
become settlers in Assiniboia. and 
these old retired servants kept the 
secret just as closely as if it belong­
ed to a Masonic fraternity.

I may mention here that along 
with the other public books of the 
country Sir George Simpson caused 
a new Land Register to be opened to 
be known as Register B. This book
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was opened about the year 1812, in 
the time of Governor Finlayson. 
This register contained the entries of 
1542 River laits, arti is now In 
the possession of the Hudson’s Bay 
Company at Winnipeg.

Copies of Register B. were made 
for the Federal Government by the 
late Col. W. V Kennedy and Frank 
Clarke, Ksq. since 1870.

So much for the public books at 
present. We shall refer to them 
again.

After Sir George Simpson’s death 
in I860, there was no one in Assini- 
boia who could grant certificates for 
land to the retired servants of the 
Hudson's Bay Company.

And any sales or transfers of the 
lands mentioned in Register B. were 
attended to by Mr. John II. McTav- 
ish from 1860 to the year 1870.

However, the death of Sir George 
Simpson in I860, caused a new de­
parture for a short time in the ad­
ministration of the lands in Assini- 
boia. The Hudson's Bay Company 
could sell no lands as they had patt­
ed with that right in 1811. What 

l^>as W to be done for those who 
wanted lands outside of those men­
tioned in Register B.? Bishop Tache 
came to the rescue. In February 
i860 Bishop Tache introduced a 
Homestead Law in the Government 
of Assinihoia. of which Government 
he was a member, and under this 
homestead law, many settlers took 
lands, and were protected in their 
right to them during the ten years 
that preceded the transfer of Rupert’s 
Land, the North West Territories 
and the District of Assinihoia to 
Canada. A copy of this Homestead 
Law was placed on file in the De­
partment of the Secretary of State 
by the late Governor Morris.

A NATIONAL BLI NDER.
On the 8th August, 1868, the fol­

lowing letter was sent from Down­
ing Street, to the Governor General 
of Canada, Lord Monck:
“My Lord,—

I have the honor to transmit to 
you, for your Lordship's informa­
tion, the enclosed copy of an act of 
Parliament, conferring powers for the 
surrender to Her Majesty by the 
Hudson’s Bay Company of their 
territories and privileges.

In pursuance of the powers con­
ferred by this Act of Parliament, I 
purpose to enter into negotiations 
with the Hudson’s Bay Company as 
to the terms on which they will sur­
render their lights, and I shall not 
fail to keep your Lordship informed 
of the course of such negotiations.”

The Act referred to is the Rupert’s 
Land Act.

To which letter Lord Monck re­
plied hv cablegram, as follows:—

Quebec, 9th, Sept. 1868.
“Privy Council wish to send a dele­

gation to London . to take pat * in 
treaty with Hudson’s Bay Company. 
They are anxious that negotiations 
with company should be postponed till 
arrival of delegates in London. 
Please inform me by cable how soon 
you will be able to receive them. 
They are prepared to go immediate­
ly.”

MONCK.

“Colonial Office, 11th Sept., 1868 
Delegates to advise with me on the 

arrangements between the Crown and 
the Company should start at once. I 
have appointment with Governor of 
Company for 18th, but will now con­
clude nothing until delegation shall 
have arrived.”

BUCKINGHAM & CHAN DOS 
Quebec, 22nd September, 1868. 

“Delegates intend to sail from hence 
October 3rd. They trust nothing 
will be concluded until their arrival 
in England, where they will be due 
about the thirteenth.”

MONCK.
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Under the authority of an Order in 
Council of the 1st October, 1868, 
Sir Geo. E. Cartier and Non. Win. 
McDougall were appointed a delega­
tion to Kngland to arrange the terms 
of the acquisition by Canada, of Rup­
ert's Land and the North-West Terr­
itories. They proceeded at once to 
Kngland to excute the important 
mission confided to them. During 
the whole of the negotiations with 
the stock holders of the Hudson's 
Hay Company nothing was said re­
garding the vast area of 71,555,520 
acres that had been deeded by the 
Hudson’s Hay Company to Lord Sel­
kirk in 1811, and it was therefore, 
taken for granted by the Canadian 
delegates, that the lands around Hud­
son’s Hay, and the lands now in Man­
itoba and Saskatchewan, were all 
held by the Hudson’s Hay Company 
under the Charter of King Charles 
the Second, which was not the case.

The delegates in due time, con­
cluded their arrangements with the 
Hudson’s Hay Company and returned 
to Canada, and on the 17th May, 
I860. Sir John Young, then Gover­
nor-General of Canada, laid a copy of 
the agreement entered into with the 
Hudson’s Hay Company, on the table 
of the House of Commons. This 
agreement was ratified by Parliament 
and Parliament then passed “An Act 
for the Temporary Government of Ru­
pert’s Land and the North-West Terr­
itories when united with Canada ” On 
the 29th September, in the year 186!* 
the Hon. Win. McDougall was ap­
pointed, under the great Seal of 
Canada, Lieutenant -Governor of the 
North-West Territories, and shortly 
afterwards he proceeded in the name 
of the Dominion Government towards 
the North-West Territories, to gov­
ern us, a people who had our own 
lands, our own government, our

rights anil our laws, “a people who 
were British subjects, proud of the 
privilege and jealous of the indepen­
dence it affords.”

On the 19th November, 186», the 
Hudson’s Bay Company executed a 
Deed of Surrender to Her late Majes­
ty (Jueen Victoria, of all their rights 
assumed or otherwise, in Rupert's 
Land and the North-West Territories.

The following is an approximate 
statement of the lands in the Dis­
trict of Assiuiboia, showing by whom 
they were owned on the Ifltli Nov­
ember 1869, the date of the Hudson's 
Hay Co’s Deed of Surren
1. Lands claimed by 

the Hudson’s Bay 
Company at Upper 
Fort Garry, and rati­
fied by Canadian Par­
liament in May I860

2. Lands claimed by the 
Hudson's Hay Com­
pany at Lower Fort 
Garry, and ratified by 
Canadian Parliament 
in May 186»

8. Lands owned by Ro­
man Catholic and 
Anglican Churches.
about ...........................

1. Grants and pur­
chases, Kildonan set­
tlers, about ...............

5. Selkirk’s grant to 
Chief Pequis, about
25 miles by I ............

fi. Lands purchased by 
retired servants from 
Attorney of Estate 
Sir George Simpson, 
about 152348 acres

7. Homesteads taken up 
by settlers at different 
places in Assiniboia.
about ... ...... 10,000 acres.

8. Selkirk’s heirs, bal­
ance left of nine-

lo acres.

200 acres.

15000 acres

12800 acres

til000 acres
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1i»nths, about ........66,845,513 acres.

67,099,968 ju res
it. Free grants to 
retired servants 
by Sir George 
Simpson and 
(io\ MeTavish,
about .................152,315

10 Retired Ser­
vants' lands , 
bal. left of one- 
tenth, about 7.303,207

7,155,552 acres

Total acreage of
Estate............... 74,555,520 acres

It was out of these lands, the pri­
vate proverty of British subjects, 
that in May, 1870. the Federal Par­
liament formed tin* little province of 
M mil "ha, which contained about 13,- 
008 square miles, equal to 8.001.120 
acres, a trifle under one-eighth of the 
size of Lord Selkirk’s Estate!

In dealing further with this land 
matter, I have to touch upon some of 
the events of the so-called Bed River 
Rebellion . f 18«0 1*70. and what fol-

tn the month of October 1868. Mr 
Snow arrived «( Fort Oarrv. lie 
rune under instructions of the Com 
missio^er of Public Works. Ottawa, 
to open a road from the Lake of the 
Woods to the Red River Colour. His 
operations wore not opposed hv the 
people of the country, but the Hud 
son's Bay Company were not quite 
satisfied over the matter.

In the month of July, I860, the 
writer was returning to the Selkirk 
Settlement from Si. Cloud, in the 
Vlilted States, when, between Fort 
Xbercromhte and Georgetown, he met 
Dr. Join* Christian Schultz, who was 
on his way to St. Paul. Our conver­
sation iturned to the subject of the

change that was about to take place 
in the country. We both fell that the 
Hudson's Bay Company in London 
had not acted fairly in concluding an 
arrangement with the Canadian Gov­
ernment without consulting the Red 
River people and Dr. Schultz predict­
ed trouble in the country.

On the 20th of August. 1869, Col 
Dennis arrived at Fort Garry. He 
was sent by the authorities at Ot­
tawa to join Mr. Snow, who had 
been instructed to commence surveys 
for tbe Canadian Government The 
surveys were begun at Oak Point, in 
a French Settlement. The settlers 
protested at having their lands sur­
veyed differentlv from their original 
metes and hounds. Col. Dennis 
stopped operations, and reported to 
Ottawa, that the settlers were op­
posed to the new method of survey 
On <he Ith. October. 186*. Col Den 
nis was instructed to “proceed with 
the surveys on the plan proposed." 
and he continued his survey on priv­
ate property.

Ill the month of September. 1869. 
the lion Wm McDougall was ap­
pointed Governor of R-nert's Land 
and the North-West Territories

In the earlv paH of the month of 
October 1869 a very important meet 
ing xvas held at the house of Mi 
Thomas Sinclair. Senior, in the par 
ish of St \ndrews. a few doors from 
where I lived The meeting was held 
to discuss the situation of affairs in 
the District of Assinihoia Mr John 
Bruce and Mr. Louis Reil were pre­
sent at the meeting.

Mr. Sinclair was a member of the 
Government of Assinihoia. a level 
Imaged m-mi and a good citizen. The 
feeline of the few who had gathered 
together was. that Canada should he 
apprised in some w-v or other of the 
mistake that was being made
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in bargaining fm i lu* lands 
that had him deeded away by tlu* 
Hudson’s Hay Company in 1811. It 
was suggested that Dr. Schultz would 
lea , roper person to lead a move­
ment that would bring the true 
knowledge of our position to the not­
ice of the Canadian people, hut when 
it was considered that for several 
years his paper, “The Nor-Wester,” 
had been printing so much against 
the Hudson’s Hay Company, it 
was thought that he would he 
f>a son a non grata with the resi­
dent o Hivers and retired servants 
of the Hudson’s Hay Company, and 
might get only a very indifferent sup­
port. And, again, the time was too 
short to do much. The question of 
allowing Governor McDougall into 
the country when lie arrived at Pem­
bina was also discussed. There were 
two views on this quest ion—One view 
was. to allow Governor McDougall to 
corne into the country, hut not to

•vein, hut to acquaint him with all 
the facts connected with the District 
of Xssinihoia, and that he he asked 
to report the true state of affairs to 
the Ottawa Government. The other 
view wav that Mr McDougall he ask­
ed to remain at Pembina until the 
tight 1 i the linils of the settlers was 
uaranteed
The meeting, however, decided no­

thing. There was only an exchange 
of ideas. While each one felt that 
something should he done to help the 

•Hon s n one decided what should 
he done. Mr. Sinclair was at that 
time very unwell and could not take 
an active part in the affairs of the 
country. lie died a few months 
later, in March 187tt. greatly regret­
ted. In the mean time Governor Mc­
Dougall arrived at Pembina, hut 
was not allowed to enter the District 
of Xssinihoia XX'hile it is true that 
some of onr people were offended be­

cause that a cut and ill y Government 
was to he imposed upon them, that 
was not the true secret for opposing 
Governor MeDougull's entry. No 
one in the country objected to Can­
adian rule, but the stock-holders of 
the Hudson’s Bay Company had, as 
one of the conditions of the s srrender 
of their rights to the Imperial Gov­
ernment, arranged with Canada for a 
large land consideration, viz: the 
one-twentieth of the lands of Xssini 
boia, which the people of the country 
felt and knew did not belong to that 
Company, and the French decided 
that only by force of arms, would the 
District of Xssinihoia be taken from 
them:- unless, that Canada would 
break the bargain made by the 
Hudson’s Bay Company affecting tIn­
lands of Xssinihoia, and also guaran­
tee titles to every description of 
property. X Council of French 
people was formed at Riviere Salle 
about the end of October, IKiüi .lolin 
Bruce was president, and Louis Riel 
was secretary I niler the direction 
and authority of this council, the 
French took up arms and I pper Fort 
Garrv was taken by them on the 2nd 
of November IRiiit.

On the 23 rd November. I Stitt, the 
Knglish-speaking people of Xssinihoia. 
s«*iit 12 delegates to confer with the 
French to consider the political state 
>f the country On that occasion Mr 
Louis Riel inf need our delegates 
that the French had seized and taken 
over all the Public Books and Re 
cords of the Government of Xssini 
boia. iinl also declared the intention 
of forming a provisional government. 
(Note this fact regarding the Public 
Hooks. )

On the 21th November, ixnti, the 
first Provisional Government was 
formed in Fort Garry, with John 
Bruce as president and Louis Riel
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as secretary. This was a govern- 
ni4*ii 1 of i hi* French only.

On the 1st of December 1809, Gov­
ernor MvDougal crossed the frontier 
and posted up a proclamation at 
Pembina assuming the office of Gov- 
erttor of the country. On the same 
dale Governor McDougall, posted up 
a second proclamation, appointing 
John Stoughton Dennis as his Lieut­
enant and conservator of the peace in 
and for the North-West Territories, 
and vesting him with authority to

raise, organize, arm, equip and 
provision a sufficient force within the 
said territory, and with the said 
force to attack, arrest, and disperse 
armed men unlawfull) assembled." 
Along with about 299 men the writ­
er, it* December, 1869, enrolled 
under Col. Dennis and was sworn 
in as one of Her Majesty’s 
volunteers in the North-West Terr­
itories. for tlie purpose of putting 
down the French, and bringing Gov­
ernor McDougall to Fort Garry. 
These volunteers drilled for a time 
at Lower Fort Garry. They were to 
lie paid $2.00 a day by Canada, as 
soon as peace was restored, and Can­
adian money secured. Without say 
ing good-bye, paying or discharging 
his men. Col. Dennis secretly took 
lii» leave, and we have not seen him 
since Sometime between the Mth 
of December, 1899. and January 1st 
1870, Mr. Kiel became president of 
the First Provisional Government. 
It was this government that was 
holding ^possession of Vpper Fort 
Gaii \ kVrVlfl'Kl' lid V Smith, Go\ 
ernor of the Hudson’s Day Company 
and High Commissioner for Canada, 
arrived in the country, (I may men­
tion here that, the Chief Factors, 
Chief Traders and Chief Clerks of the 
Hudson’s Bay Company were greatly 
annoyed at the stockholders in Lon­

don, over the bargain that had been 
made with Canada, inasmuch as they, 
the stock-holders oi'ly, were getting 
the one-twentieth of the lands and al­
so the whole of the purchase money 
viz: £800,000, Sir Donald A. Smith 
managed to satisfy the chief factors 
and Chief Traders for the time being.

Kiel and the French were the next 
persons that the High Commissionei 
had to deal with. The French con­
tended that the stock-holders of the 
Hudson’s Bay Company in London, 
could not legally sell, nor surrender 
the District of Xssinihoia to Canada, 
inasmuch as the Hudson’s Bay Com­
pany had no title to the lands in As- 
siniboia.

The Commissioner then invited the 
French to place their wishes before 
the authorities at Ottawa. Kiel 
pointed out to the Commissioner that 
while the Knglish and Scotch inhab­
itants of the country were not satis- 
lied with the bargain made between 
the Hudson's Bay Company and Can­
ada, he (Kiel) did not have their sup­
port, as he had with the French, been 
obliged to take up arms against those 
who were invading the country, and 
had also imprisoned those in the 
country who had opposed the French. 
He also pointed out that unless the 
people were united in asking Canada 
for the rights they desired, they 
would rot he heard.

The High Commissioner then agreed 
to do what he could to cause the 
Knglish and Scotch rendents of the 
country to unite with the French, in 
asking for an acknowledgment of 
their rights from Canada.

It was therefore under the pet- 
suasion and advise of the High Com­
missioner for Canada that the Kn­
glish and Scotch joined with the 
French in asking for their rights 
from Canada, and in forming a sec­
ond Provisional Government.

On the 19th of January. 1879. Sii



12 Tu K N K i kuans uk Tm; Fut Tu auk

Donald A. Smith addressed a mass 
meeting in Fort Uarrv, at. which lie 
guaranteed to the people of this 
country in the name of ‘'amnia, all 
the rights and privileges that were 
given to the other provinces, if they 
would only consent to enter the Con 
federation of Canada. At the con­
clusion of the meeting Mr. Louis Riel 
moved, seconded by Mr. A. (i. IV 
Banuatyne, “That :!U representatives 
shall be elected by the Knglish popu­
lation of the Red River, to meet 20 
other representatives of the French 
population, on Tuesday, the 25th 
instant, at noon, in the Court House 
with the object of considering the 
subject of Mr. Smith’s commission, 
and to decide what would he best for 
the welfare of the country. “The 10 
delegates were duly elected and these 
met in the Court House near Fort 
Harry on the 25th January, 1870 
The convention sat fifteen days. On 
the third day of the meeting a com­
mittee consisting of Thomas Bunn, 
James Ross, Dr. Bird, Louis Riel, 
Louis Schmidt and Charles Noliu was 
appointed to draft a “Bill of Rights, 
which was to be submitted to Sir 
Donald A Smith. High Commission­
er, for Canada.

The Committee reported the Bill 
of Rights on the 20th January. 
1870. and it was taken up by the 
Convention, clause by clause, and 
discussed until the 5th February, 
when it was fully adopted. The con­
vent ion then adjourned until the 7th 
of Feburary, 1870, when the Can­
adian Commissioner, Sir Donald A. 
Smith gave his reply to the Bill of 
Rights, and invited delegates to go 
to Ottawa and consult with the Gov­
ernment there. On the 8th Feb­
ruary 1870, the question of sending 
a delegation to Ottawa was taken up 
by the Convention. This led to the 
discussion of recognizing and reorgan­

ising the Provisional Government, be­
fore the delegates to send to Ot­
tawa with the Bill of Rights now 
agreed upon, were appointed. A com­
mittee was then appointed by the 
Convention “to discuss and decide on 
the basis and details of the Provision­
al Government which we have agreed 
is to he formed for Rupert's Land 
and the North-West Territories. ’

On the 9th February, 1870, the 
committee recommended to the Con­
vention the advisability of creating a 
Legislative Assembly to he composed 
of twenty-four members, twelve Kng­
lish and twelve French, and a Cabinet 
to he constructed as follows:—

President —Louis Riel, Ksq.
Judge of Supreme Court.—James 

Ross, Ksq., M. A.
Sheriff.—Henry McKeiiny. Ksq.
Coroner.—Dr. Bird.
Postmaster General.—A. G. IV Ban- 

natyne, Ksq.
Collectors of Customs.—John Suth­

erland, Ksq. Roger Goulet, Ksq.
Secretary of State—Thomas Bunn,

Assistant Secretary of State.— 
Louis Schmidt. Ksq.

Secretary of the Treasury.—W. IV 
O'Donohue, Ksq.

This was the second Provisional 
Government, formed, aftei the people 
had united, from representatives of 
Knglish. French and Scotch

On the 10th February, 1870. a 
ballot was taken in the convention 
for delegates to Canada and resulted 
in the election of Reverend J. V 
Rr hot. Judge Black, aril Alfred 
Scott.

In dismissing the convention, Riel 
said: “The First Provisional Govern­
ment assumes the full responsibility 
for all its acts." Meaning by this:—
( 1 ) Taking up arms.
(2) Keening Governor McDougall out
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of the country.
(3) The occupation of Upper Fort 
dairy by the French.
(I) Imprisoning certain persons.

With these four things the English 
and Scotch had nothing to do.

Two men were now extremely 
happy. Sir Donald A. Smith, that 
lie had managed so far to protect the 
stock-holders in London in their 
bargain with Canada, and Louis Riel, 
in believing that with the help of the 
whole community now united, he 
would be able to defeat the purpose 
of the stockholders, and to ‘break 
their bargain with Canada, so fai 
as it affected the District of Assin- 
ihoia.

On the 28rd January, 1870, Dr. 
Schultz made his escape from the 
prison at Fort Garry, and on the 
15th February, 1870, he was join­
ed at Kildonan Church and School, by 
a force of about 600 armed men. The 
writer was one of those who took up 
arms on this occasion under Dr. 
Schultz, and llajoi Boulton. The 
object of this uprising was to release 
tie prisoners in Fort Garry. A dis­
patch was sent to Riel by our Coun­
cil of War, and after waiting about 
12 hours for a reply, 83 prisoners 
were released in the evening of the 
16th February, after having been
sworn to keep the peace.

It was during our halt at Kildon- 
an Church that Sutherland was killed 
on the 16th February, 1870, and
that Parisien received his death
wounds, from which he died a few 
days afterwards, and 16 days after 
the death of Sutherland, on the 1th 
of March, 1870, Thomas Scott was 
shot outside the walls of Fort Garry.

On the 22nd March, 1870, Com­
missions and Letters of Instruction 
were issued by the Secretary of the 
Provisional Government Mr. Tho­
mas Bunn, to Rev. J. X. Richot, 
Judge Black and Mr. Alfred Scott, 
the delegates to Ottawa, and on the
3Ird "I March, I 17# thieee delegate!

1.1

started for Ottawa, carrying with 
them our Bill of Rights, which con­
tained the terms under which we 
would consent to enter the Confedera­
tion of Canada.

I shall only deal with three clauses 
of our Bill of Rights:—
Clause 1 reads as follows:— “That 
the Territories heretofore known as 
Rupert’s Land and the North-West, 
shall not enter into the Confederation 
of the Dominion, except as a prov­
ince, to be styled and known as the 
Province of Assinihoia, and witliTiïi* 
rights and privileges common to ilie 
different Provinces of the Dominion.”

Clause 10 reads as follows:—
“That the bargain of the Hudson's 

Bay Company, in respect to the 
transfer of the Government of this 
country to the Dominion of Canada 
be annulled, so far as it interferes 
with the rights of the people of As 
siniboia, and so far as it would af­
fect our future relations with Can­
ada."

Clause 11. reads as follows:—
“That the local Legislature of the 

Province of Assinihoia shall have full 
control over all the public lands of 
the Province, and the right to annuli 
all acts or arrangements made or en­
tered into with reference to the pub­
lic lands of Rupert’s Land and the 
North-W’est now called the Province 
of Assinihoia."

The writer has had several con­
versations with three of the gentle­
men who drew up the Bill of Rights 
that was sent to Ottawa in 1870, 
xv.: James Ross, M. A., Gold Med­
alist, of Toronto University, Curtis 
J. Bird, M. D., and Thomas Bunn, 
Secretary of the Provisional Govern­
ment.

What was the object to be attained 
by embracing in one province the 
whole of Rupert’s Land and the
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North-West Territories as asked for 
in clause 1.7

Why did we ask in clause 10 that 
the bargain made with the Hudson’s 
Hay Company be annulled?

And why in clause 11, for the con­
trol of i he public lands''

Because, it was felt by those who 
drew up the Hill of Rights, that 
while the District of Assinihoia, Lord 
Selkirk's Kstate, which contained 
71,555,520 acres was quite large 
enough for a province, yet, as nearly 
the whole of this area was held by 
private individuals, there were no 
public lands to give to incoming set­
tlers, and no lands available for pub­
lic purposes. It was, therefore, de­
cided to include the whole countrx in­
to one province, believing that the 
time would very soon come when 
things would adjust themselves. It 
was also felt, and very strongly, that 
the bargain made between Canada 
and the Hudson's Hay Company in­
terfered with the rights of the people 
of the District of Assinihoia, Lord 
Selkirk’s Kstate, and if the bargain 
were allowed to stand, it would al­
ways affect our future relations with 
Canada, and Clause 10, in our Hill 
of Rights, deals entirely with the 
old District of Assinihoia

As to the control of the public 
lands asked for in clause 11, we were 
assured by the High Commissioner, 
for Canada, when invited to enter the 
Dominion of Canada, that we would 
have the same rights and privileges 
in Confederation as Her Majesty's 
Government had given to Ontario, 
(Quebec, Nova Scotia and New Bruns­
wick.

By the time out delegates arrived 
at Ottawa, the whole of Canada was 
in a state of fermentation. The news 
of the unfortunate deaths of Suther­
land, Parisien and Scot 1, togethei

with the knowledge that Canadians 
and others, were being imprisoned at 
Fort Garry so exasperated the Kast- 
ern people that out Hill of Rights 
did not receive the careful considera­
tion we ex. retell f >r it, and especial lx 
as we had the audacity to ask the 
Government of Canada that the bar 
„ain that they had made and ratified 
by their parliamentarians with the 
11misons Hay Company he annulled so 
far as it affected the District of As­
sinihoia, and the future of every per­
son who xvould live within that area. 
That settled tilings. \ hill was very 
hurriedly put through Parliament, 
known as the Manitoba Act, by 
which a little Province was formed 
out of part of Lord Selkirk’s Kstate, 
containing about 8,0(Hl,(i00 acres and 
the Wolselv expedition xvas then sent 
up to this country, not to fight Louis 
Riel and the French, hut to take pos­
session of the lands that Kastern 
Can..da believed then, and now. that 
they had justly acquired from the 
Hudson's Hay Company, and xve had 
to be content with what we got.

We now come hack to the public 
books of the Government of Assini­
hoia. These hooks had been in the 
possession of Louis Riel and the 
French from the 2'trd November, 
IKtitt, to the 21th Xugust, 1*70, 
the day that Sir Garnet Wolselcy 
entered Fort Garry.

It was the intention of Riel to 
hand over personally to Sir. Garnet

olseley all the public books and re­
cords of the country, hut as Riel was 
so well assured by his friends that 
lie would receive no protection from 
Sir Garnet Wolselcy, he left Fort 
Garry and all the public hooks and 
record* behind him, just a few min­
utes before Wolselcy's troops took 
posession During the short time that 
clasped while Riel was leaving the
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Kovt and the troops were* entering 
it. Mi John II. McTavish. Chief Ac­
countant of the Hudson's Hay Com­
pany gathered up all the most im­
portant books, maps and records and 
hid them away, and the Canadian 
Government afterwards received such 
records only, as would not hurt the 
bargain that had been made with the 
Hudson’s Hav Company

Governor Archibald in due time 
called the First Manitoba Legislature 
together for the dispatch of business.

In his first speech from the throne, 
Governor Archibald said: “I regret 
to have to inform you that the or­
iginal plans of Survey have been lost 
within the last year. Happily a 
copy has been found, which appears 
to have been made with great ac­
curacy. It will he desirable to pre­
vent the mischief which would arise 
from the loss of the original plan by 
giving to the copy, till the original 
is discovered, the same validity as if 
it were the original. Your atten­
tion will he invited to a measure for 
this purpose.”

On the 28th September, 1870, a 
petition was presented to Governor 
Archibald and his Council, by the old 
residents of St. Andrews, St Peters. 
St. .lames, Kildonan and Headinglv, 
asking the new Government of the 
countrj to enquire into the causes 
which led to all the troubles of 
1866-1870, and indicating their wishes 
in reference to certain matters aris­
ing out of these troubles.

To this petition a reply was given 
in the form of a rebuke, on the 80th 
of September, 1870, and signed by A. 
Boyd, Provincial Secretary.

On the evening of the 25th August.
1 *86 Sir John \ Macdonald ,ni 
dressed the citizens of Winnipeg in 
Holy Trinity Hall. Sir John Mac­

donald told the people why the Fed­
eral Government was disallowing 
Charters for branch lines of railways 
running from the Main line of the C. 
P. R., into American territory. He 
also spoke of the splendid bargain 
that had been made when Canada 
bought this country from the Hud­
son’s Hay Company, and told his 
audience that the value of one block 
of land in the City of Winnipeg was 
all that had been paid to the Hud­
son’s Hay Company for the whole 
country.

At the close of the meeting the 
I Ion. John Norquav asked me to 
reply to Sir John A. Macdonald by 
letter, to that part of his speech 
dealing with the purchase of this 
country, which 1 did, and 1 received 
the following letter:—

Karnscliffe, Ottawa,
Sept. 21st, IHXi;.

Dear Sir:—
“Absence from home prevented my 

answering your interesting letter of 
August 80th before. Whatever may 
have been the original position or 
ownership of the Hudson’s Hay Com­
pany, it is certain that their title 
was recognized by the Imperial Sta­
tute which enabled Canada to acquire 
their rights, and the Canadian Gov­
ernment must deal with the company 
from this point of view.

Ill haste, believe me,
Yours faithful!),

John A. Macdonald.” 
James Taylor, Ksq.

Winnipeg
To which I replied as follows:—

Winnipeg, Sept. 281 h, IXKii. 
Dear Sir: —

“Referring again to your letter of 
the 21st instant, I have to say 
in regard to our lands, that coming 
in between the charter of the Hud-
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son’s Bay Company, and the Imperial 
Statute to which you refer, there is 
another title to an immense tract of 
land which has not been considered 
by the Imperial Government. And be­
tween the Canadian Government and 
the people of this country, the same 
title intervenes, and still holds good.

1 hope in the near future to he able 
to send you a copy of the title.

I have the honor to he, sir,
Your obedient servant, 

JAMKS TAYLOR. 
The I Ion. Sir John A. Macdonald, 

Ottawa.
To which letter I received no reply.
Before the death of the late Mr. 

Thus. Bunn, he informed me 1 hat the 
principal records of the country had 
been saved by Mr. .1 II. McTavish. 
and were being safely protected by 
him for future use, and advised great 
caution as to how I approached Mr. 
McTavish on the subject. I need not 
hardly add that I have taken the 
greatest precaution in approaching 
Mr. McTavish, and have, after sev­
eral years been successful in discov­
ering Colony Register A, and also 
receiving information regarding all 
the other books and records of the 
District of \ssinihoia

When I opened the subject to Mr. 
McTavish, he told me how the hooks 
and records had come into his pos­
session I le also said that he had 
lent Register A on one occasion to 
Governor Morris, and that the hook 
was now at Government House, Win­
nipeg, in possession of Governor 
Schultz. For other hooks, maps and 
records, he advised me to write to 
Sir D maid \ Smith. When 1 asked 
Governor Schultz to allow me to see 
Register A. he hesitated, and then 
promised to let me see it some time 
later on. I waited a considerable 
time when one day I received the 
following letter :

(Private)
Manitoba and Keewatin Govern­

ment House,
Winnipeg, 17th Dec., 1888. 

Dear Mr. Taylor:—
Wednesday (first ) evening at 7 p.m. 

The book you would like to look over 
will he at your service at it p.m. and 
ary notes or copy you wish to make 
can he made.

With best wishes in which Mrs. 
Schultz joins,

Believe me,
Yours very truly, 

John Schultz.
•las. Taylor, Ksq.

Winnipeg,
And so Register Book ", that 

we had been searching for, for years, 
was placed into my liai ils by Govern­
or Schultz in December, 1888, eight­
een years after the transfer of this 
country to Panada. I set to work 
at once to make a copy of Register 
A., for my own use, photographed 
the maps, and then returned the Reg­
ister on the 27th March, 1880, to 
Governor Schultz. I might say here, 
that the maps of the first surveys of 
the Red River Color y have never 
been used by the Fixerai Government 
so far as we are aware, and many of 
the original settlers have not been 
able to this day to secure patents for 
the lands that they'brought with them 
into Confederation, hut have been de 
prived of their lands, mainly on ac­
count of the loss at the time of the 
transfer, of their public books and of 
ficial maps of the District of \ssini- 
hoia.

The question will he asked, by the 
reader of this pamphlet. has any­
thing ever been done by any person 
or persons since the transfer, with 
regard to the retired servants’ claim 
to the one-tenth part of Lord Sel­
kirk’s estate, to try to have the mat­
ter settled? My answer is “Yes” 
On several occasions this claim has 
been included alor«g with other claims
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that have been presented to the Fed­
eral Government, hut we were al­
ways handicapped on account of not 
being able to show documentary evi­
dence as to how our titles originated. 
We could only tell the Government 
that our claims were valid and just. 
On the other hand the Ottawa gov­
ernment could do nothing for us, in­
asmuch as they were not in posses­
sion until very recently of the orig­
inal titles to our lands. In adjust­
ing our land claims in the past in 
the Selkirk Estate, the Government 
have confined themselves, nearly al­
together to the copy of survey, that 
had been handed to Governor Archi­
bald by the late Mr. J.H. McTavish. 
and also to Register B., already re­
ferred to, so that while many of us 
have been the losers, the Canadian 
Government are not altogether to 
blame in refusing to recogiize our 
claims without seeing the proper 
proofs. However, the case is differ­
ent now. Six years ago, in 1900, the 
Federal Government were put in pos­
session of authenticated copies of the 
original titles to lands ir the District 
of Assinihoia. .So that we are now in 
a position to place our claims be­
fore the Government accompanied by 
evHence that is indisputable.

Referring again to the question, 
Has anything ever beer* dime in the 
matter of the claim of the retired 
servants of the Hudson's Bay Com­
pany*

The following attempts have been 
made to find our lost hooks ami other 
records and to prove our claims.

1. Reference has already been made 
to a netltion sent to Governor Arch­
ibald in 187(1. Mad Governor Archi­
bald appointed a Commission to en­
quire ii'to the c uses tint led to the 
troubles of 18(iti-1870. this claim of 
the retired servants of the Hudson's 
Ray Company to the one-tenth of

Selkirk's Estate, along with others 
that would have opened up, would 
have been clearly proven.

2. On the 27th March, 1881, the 
late Hon. .1. Norquay, at that time 
Premier of the Province of Manitoba, 
presented to the Manitoba Legisla­
ture, a petition from several of the 
old inhabitants of the country. The 
prayer of the petition read as fol­
low's:

“That your Honorable House au­
thorized the handing over of all the 
books and papers, the property and 
records of the past governments of 
this com*trv.

That your Honorable House allow 
the appointment of a committee of 
Investigation to be composed of 
twelve persons as follows, viz.

Hon. .1. Norquay,
Hon. Mr. LaRiviere,
Thos. Green way, M.P.P.,
A. C. Killam. M.P.P.,
.1. Ward. Esq.,
F. R. Gemmell, Esq.,
E. P. Leacock, Esq.,
Capt. W. Kenned v 
P. Delorme. Esq.
.1. Martin. M.P.P.
P. Tbihert, Esq.,
J. Taylor, Esq.

That the said committee of investi­
gation be empowered to summon wit­
nesses to ask for books and papers, 
and to make such enquiry into the 
past history of this country as shall 
be deemed advisable and necessary by 
the committee.

That in the execution of their du­
ties the commit te of investigation to 
have full powers.

That upon c ?tion of its work,
the committee to report to the local 
Legislature at Its next meeting."

3. In November, 1886, the Hon. J. 
Norquay wrote a special letter to 
the Minister of Interior dealing with 
all our claims to lands, the retired

9
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servants' claim being included, and 
then sent me the following letter:

Wimipeg, 15th Nov., 1880. 
My dear Mr. Taylor,—

I have to acknowledge the receipt 
of your favor of the 80th October. 1 
notice you have been interesting your­
self in the claims of old settlers. I 
have just written to the Minister of 
Interior practically the substance of 
what I see was adopted by you and 
several others in the shape of a mem­
orial. You can reckon on my doing 
everything in my power to assist in 
bringing this vexed question to a 
satisfactory conclusion.

Yours Sincerely,
JOHN NORQVAY

4. At the impending election in 1887 
for the House of Commons, Professor 
Cl. Smith, A. W. Ross, Ksq., and A. 
A. Macarthur. Ksq., were mentioned 
as candidates for the county of Lis- 
gar. The writer was very strongly 
urged to become a candidate for the 
same county. After two interviews 
with Mr. Ross at which several 
claims with the claim of the retired 
servants of the Hudson's Ray Com­
pany were fully discussed, the writer 
agreed to give his influence and sup­
port to Mr. Ross, provided Mr. Ross 
would undertake to champion 
these claims in the House 
of Commons. Whereupon Mr Ross 
sent the following letter to our com­
mittee.

Winripeg, Jan. 24th, 1H87. 
To Mr. J. R. Bunn, Secretary Old 

Settlers Central Committee.
Sir:—As a result of an interview be­
tween Mr. J Taylor, Chairman of 
the above mentioned committee and 
myself, I beg to make the following 
promise and request that you will at 
the earliest moment advise your com­
mittee of this action. In the matter 
of the petition now being circulated 
and signed hv the people having un­

settled claims ami grievances requir­
ing attention to he submitted to the 
Governor General in Council, praying 
for some settlement of the same. In 
the event of the petition not receiv­
ing the prompt attention it is ob­
vious it requires, 1 hereby pledge my­
self, if elected to represent the county 
of Lisgar in the House of Commons, 
that I will introduce this petition 
for discussion on the floor of the 
House of Commons, and further that 
1 will not abstain from bringing this 
matter up in such a way as will 
eventually cause some definite action 
to be taken, and that I will persist­
ently represent the necessity of the 
same, feeling, as I do, the equity and 
justice that is really denied these 
people by keeping these questions so 
long unset tied. Vnd further, that I 
will not conclude any arrangements 
with the Government in connection 
with the petition without first con­
sulting the chairman and secretary of 
the sail! committee.

I am, yours truly,
A. W ROSS.

5. Cn the 11th Feb., 1887, the pe­
tition referred to in Mr. Ross' letter, 
and measuring forty-nine feet in 
length, was forwarded to the Hon. 
the Secretary of State.

6. In 1887, the Legislature of Man­
itoba drafted an address to the Gov­
ernor General in Council, asking for 
a Royal Commission to settle all 
claims, the retired servants' claim 
being included.

7. On the 15th May, 1888, a com­
mittee appointed by the Manitoba 
Legislature received a delegation of 
80 persons from different parts of the 
old colony at which the claim of the 
letiml servants of the Hudson's Ray 
Company was discussed along with 
other claims.

8. In September, 1888, the Hon. J 
Xorquay in Parli uneiit, reminded the
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Government that the committee ap­
pointed by the Legislature had reco­
mmended that a Royal Commission he 
appointed composed of parties ac­
quainted with the position of affairs 
to he investigated. The I Ion. Mr. 
Green way, Premier, replied that the 
Government intended taking it up at 
the earliest possible moment, and 
complying with the request of the 
committee.

9. A resolution of retired servants 
and others, passed at a meeting held 
in Winnipeg on the 19th .January, 
1887, was sent to Roht. Watson, M. 
P., Ottawa, with list of claims at­
tached. The 11th claim on the list 
was the claim of the Retired Ser­
vants of the Hudson's Bay Company.

10. On the 2nd February, 1889, I 
wrote to Sir Donald A. Smith as 
follows:—“We have also to ask that 
you will he good enough to advise 
that the Hudson’s Bay Company 
hand over to the Government of Man­
itoba for our benefit all public books, 
maps, and other records, the proper­
ty of the Government of the Council 
of Assiniboia. As without these re­
cords we labor at great disadvantage 
when attempting to get patents 
for our lands. The late Mr. .J. II. 
McTavish promised that he would 
write you on this subject.”

On the 20th February, 1889, Sir 
Donald A. Smith replied from Mon­
treal saying: “that he always took 
a great interest in our welfare and 
would be glad to support any matter 
presented by us to the Dominion Gov­
ernment, in any way he could possi­
bly do.” lie said nothing, however, 
about public hooks and records. On 
the fltli March, 1889, I addressed a 
letter to Sir Donald A. Smith, at 
Silver Heights, asking to he allowed 
an interview with him, and on the 
8th March, 1889, Sir Donald A. 
Smith asked me to call on him at

11.tit) a.m. tomorrow, at the Hud­
son’s Baj Company’s Land Depart­
ment, Winnipeg, which I did. We 
discussed several matters. 1 pointed 
out to him how that so many of us 
had not received patents for our 
lands in Manitoba, because we lacked 
the books, maps and records of the 
country, to help us to prove our tit­
les. Sir Donald said, “Riel stole 
your maps and records.” 1 said 
“No, when Riel left the fort 
our public books fell into the hands 
of Mr. J. H. McTavish and the High 
Commissioner for Canada. (Sir Don­
ald A. Smith) Sir Donald then asked 
me to send him a copy of the peti­
tion that had gone to the Secretary 
of State, on the lltli February, 1887, 
and promised to do all he could for 
us in Ottawa. I then called his at­
tention to the manner in which my 
grandfather, the late Win. Maekay, 
had been promised a free grant oi 
land in the one-tenth part of Selkirk 
Kstate and had not received it and 
that there were many other retired 
servants who were equally entitled, 
that have never received their grants, 
myself among the number. He then 
asked me to write him full particu­
lars of all these matters.

On the 15th March, 1889, I sent 
Sir Donald A. Smith all the informa­
tion he had asked me to prepare for 
him, and also wrote the following: 
“Regarding the belief held among so 
many persons, and which I find is 
held by yourself, viz: that Riel des­
troyed the hooks, maps and records, 
I have now the honor to ask you to 
he good enough to accept from me 
copies of two mips that 1 am send­
ing by express, showing the founda­
tions of our titles to lands in the 
Selkirk Kstate. Documents proving 
the authenticity of these maps can 
also be furnished if you wish to have 
them. I might say here that in 1880
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Kx-Govcrnor Morris compiled a book 
showing the different treaties that 
Canada had made with the Indians, 
and dedicated the work to the Karl 
of Duffer in. In that book there ys a 
full copy of the Selkirk Treaty and a 
map of the lands ceded. There is al­
so a portion of the deed given by the 
Hudson's May Company to Lord Sel­
kirk in 1811, a very small portion 
however, the larger portion of the 
deed is kept out of print. The map 
of the country deeded by the Hud­
son’s May Company is also kept from 
the public. The map of Selkirk's es­
tate that I am sending you should 
have appeared in Kx-Oovernor Mor­
ris' book."

II (in Hi,' 8th \ |*i II 1889 Mi F 
Marion. M. IV IV. when starting foi- 
Ottawa carried with him a list of all 
the claims, and handed them to the 
Minister of Interior when arriving at 
Ottawa. The 14th claim in this list 
was that of the retired servants of 
the Hudson's Bay Company.

12. A letter was set*t by the Old 
Settlers Committee to the Minister 
of Interior in April, 1886, with the 
list of claims, the retired servants 
claim included, letters and lists of 
these claims were sent at the same 
time to Sir I) A Smith and R. Wat­
son M P I*

18. A petition was sent to the Min­
ister of the Interior in June, 1R86. 
signed by French and Knglish inhab­
itants asking for the appointment of 
a commission to settle this and other 
claims.

14. In the month of July, I860, the 
writer interviewed the lion. K. 
Dewdney at Ottawa, three interviews 
were held discussing the various 
claims, the retired servants claim to 
the one-tenth part of Lord Selkirk’s 
Kstate was fully discussed, the writ­
er having with him a copy of Col­
ony Register X It was the first

time the original titles had been 
seen by the Deputy Minister. Mr. A 
M. Burgess, and to his great surprise 
although be expressed no desire to 
get them.

15. On the 6th March, 16U5 a mem­
orial was sent to Sir Wilfrid Laurier, 
asking him to provide for grafts of 
land to the retired servants of the 
Hudson’s May Company and their de­
scendants, in the Autonomy Mills 
creating the Provinces of Saskatche­
wan and Alberta. Sir Wilfrid Laur­
ier gave a very kind reply on the 21st 
April, 11105. *

16. On or about the 1 Htb June, 
1605. a petition to bis Kxcellency the 
Governor General and Council was 
sent to Mr. Lainont, M.IV. Ottawa, 
for presentation. This petition was 
handed to the Minister of the Inter­
ior at Ottawa.

When Governor Schultz hand­
ed me Register A in Govern­
ment House, Winnipeg, he asked 
me not to give publicity then, 
to the facts concerning the true own­
ership of the lands in the old district 
of Xssiniboia. 1 questioned the rea­
son. the Governor told me that “the 
Canadian Government had made a 
terrible blunder in the way they took 
over the District of Assinihoia and 
it would never do for it to he known 
that as a servant of the Government 
1 have banded you this powerful wea­
pon." Governor Schultz also point­
ed out other very substantial reasons 
for maintaining silence at that time, 
which I need not mention now but 
which I have ruefully guarded. Since 
coming to reside in Saskatchewan on 
the 13th April. 18116, I drew the at­
tention of the Hon. J. \ Smart, 
then Deputy Minister of the Interior 
to the great value of Register Book 

- X." I Informed him that “the book 
was at Government House. Winnipeg, 
that there is a eopv in London, Kng- 
Void, another in KdinHiigli. and I



The Veterans ok the Fi r Trade

have a copy, 1 may add lhal ihib 
register was on file in the Red River 
Colony before the year 1823. It is 
most important to have Register 
“A” or a oopy of it placed in the 
Department of the Interior at 
Ottawa.”

After some further correspondence 
on the subject, I was informed on 
the 7th of February, 1900, “that Reg­
ister “A” had been transcribed by a 
member of the staff in the Dominion 
Lands Office, Winnipeg, and a full 
copy of all its contents sent to the 
Department of the Interior, ( ttawa, 
and 1 have to thank you for the in­
formation you have so kindly given 
on this subject.'’

And thus it took thirty years from 
the date of our entry into confedera­
tion to he able to place in the hands 
of the Federal Government at Ottawa 
the proofs as to our rightful owner­
ship to part of the lands in the Dis­
trict of Assinihoia, commonly known 
as Lord Selkirk’s Estate.
What then have we to say as retired 
servants of the Hudson's Bay Ootn- 
I any. and what is the object of our 
petition to the Parliament of Canada 
at this time?

Simply this:—That out of the 7,- 
155,552 acres of land reserved for 
Uie retired servants of the Hudson’s 
Bay Company under the deed from 
the Hudson’s B*>v C-nmany to the 
Earl of Selkirk on the 12th of June, 
1811, and reserved for no other use 
intent or purpose whatsoever, only 
about 152,315 acres of land have been 
granted to said retired servants, leav­
ing a balance of about 7,303,207 acres 
to he yet distributed among the retir­
ed servants and their descendants, and 
we ask tb it thnen b»*rt~ ' » n w dis­
tributed among the retirod servants 
and their descendants e^d n|«n the 
present servants of the p»v
Companv and their d'»‘j'’"",,',ets. It

ma) not be considered reasonable to 
attach any blame to the Government 
of Canada for the serious blunder 
that was made in the purchase they 
claim to have made from the stock­
holders of the Hudson’s Bay Com­
pany of the 74,555,520 acres of the 
Selkirk Estate, before examining the 
title; but now that the proof is before 
them, we trust that we shall be al­
lowed the lands that so justly belong 
to us, and we wish to be clearly un­
derstood that in the adjustment of 
our claims, no one who is now a set­
tler in the old District of Assiniboia 
must he disturbed in his possession 
or n.s patert set aside.

Have we any guarantees that the 
Federal Government is in duty hound 
to secure this property to us? We 
have.

1. On the tith December, 1889, we 
were assured by the late Queen Vic­
toria’s Proclamation issued over this 
country:—“That all your civil and 
religious rights and privileges, shall 
he respected, your properties secured 
to you.”

2. On the 16th of February, 1870, 
•Sir John Young, then Governor Gen­
eral of Canada, instructed his Grace 
Archbishop Tache to give us the fol­
lowing assurance:—

“All who have complaints to make, 
or wish to express are called upon to 
address themselves to me as Her 
Majesty’s Representative and you 
may state with the utmost confidence 
that the Imperial Government has no 
intention of acting otherwise than in 
perfect go d faith towards the peo­
ple of the North West. In declaring 
the desire and determination of Her 
Majesty’s Cabinet, you may safely 
use the terms of the ancient formula, 
"Right shall he done in all cases.”

3. The Manitoba Act guarantees 
patents to lands that have been 
granted by the license and authority
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of tin* Hudson's May Company, whe­
ther in fee-simple or freehold or less 
than freehold. The one-tenth of Lord 
Selkirk’s Kstate was set apart for 
us by a deed under the license and 
authority of the Hudson's Bay Com­
pany in 1811.

One word regarding the Manitoba 
Act. The Manitoba Act was passed 
in the Federal House of Commons on 
the 12th May, 1870—just two months 
and three days before this country 
was transferred to Canada. Doubts 
existed as to the validity of the Act 
—and so in order to set the matter 
at rest, the British House of Com­
mons passed an Act on the 20th of 
June, 1871. which gave the required 
validity to the Manitoba Act.

And one word as to the transfer of 
this country to Canada.

By Crrier of the Imperial Privy 
Council at the Court of Windsor on 
the 23rd June, 1870, it was declared 
that Rupert's Land and the North 
West Territories should become part 
of Canada, on the 15th July, 1870. 
Accordingly on the 15th July, 1870, 
this country became part of the Do­
minion of Canada.

4. At Ottawa, on the 23rd of May, 
1890, I submitted in writing a large 
number of claims including the 
retired servants claim, to the Minis­
ter of the Interior, which were after­
wards discussed by us, at three in­
terviews Mr. Burgess being also pres­
ent. In dealing with the claims, I 
wrote the Minister as follows:—

"The several modes of acquiring 
lands before the transfer were:—

1. By purchase from Lord Selkirk.
2. By grants from the one-tenth 

part of Lord Selkirk’s Kstate, re­
served for that purpose by the deed 
of 1811

3. By purchase from Chief Peguis.
4 By the Homestead Law of As-

siniboia

Lord Selkirk's titles to lands on 
the Red and Assiniboine Rivers are 
in our possession and also maps ot 
iis property."

At the end of the third day the 
Minister informed me that the De­
partment would consider the claims 
more fully and give a reply in writ­
ing. I then lehjOttawa and t.n tin: 
11th June,-IStiff/ I received a letter 
from the Deputy Minister of the Ii. 
tprior in which he wrote as follows 
regarding the Manitoba Act:—

"All modes of acquiring lands be­
fore the transfer mentioned in your 
letter would appear to be covered by 
the provisions of the Manitoba Act, 
except purchases from the Indian 
Chief Peguis."

Have we anything to show that Sir 
George Simpson, Attorney for the 
Selkirk executors ever gave retired 
servants of the Hudson's Bay Com­
pany free grants of land in the Sel­
kirk Kstate?

Yes. We still have a few of Si. 
George Simpson’s Certificates for 
lands given gratuitously to retired 
servants of the Hudson’s Bay Com­
pany. But besides the certificates 
that we hold, the writer has to say 
that when he was Deputy Registrar 
for the County of Lisgar, it was his 
privilege to examine applications 
made foi patents by old residents 
and in many instances the settler 
produced a certificate for lands ilia* 
had been given by Sir George Simp­
son, free of charge, and this certifi­
cate was sent to Ottawa along with 
the application for a patent from the 
Crown.

The late Thomas Sinclair, Ksq., 
Registrar for Lisgar and also the 
late Colonel W. N. Kennedy, Regis­
trar for Selkirk, have handled several 
of the certificates of Sir George 
Simpson in the same way. These 
certificates should he on file in the
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Department of tin* Interior at Ottawa
Register “B.” a copy of which has 

been in Ottawa for many years, shows 
many free grants of land to retired 
servants of the Hudson’s Bay Com­
pany.

All honor to Mr. John II. McTav- 
ish for protecting Colony Register 
A. for our use and benefit, and for 
helping us as far as he could intler 
the circumstances.

I shall now conclude by trusting 
that this short history of the claim 
of the retired servants of the Hud­
son's Bay Company will meet with 
the approval of the committee whose

wishes 1 have endeavored to carry 
Mit.

And that our parliamentarians in 
the Federal House of Commons, and 
in the Legislatures of Manitoba and 
Saskatchewan will examine most 
carefully all the titles connected with 
this matter, commencing from the 
12th June, 1811, and after having 
done so, will then deal with us ac­
cording to Her Majesty’s promise— 
“in the spirit of British justice.”

JAMES TAYLOR,
Chairman.

Prince Albert,
November 15th, 1905.



NOTE
All [nTsons receiving this pamphlet will oblige by 

acknowledging receipt of same to James McKav, Esq., K.C., 
Secretarv, l‘rince Albert, Sask.

As it is important that we should have the names of persons 
who are claimants to the lands mentioned in this pamphlet, 
it would greatly facilitate matters if the following form were 
filled in by such claimants.

Cut out along thin line ami ilown aide.

FORM.

Name.................................................................................

Present P.O. Address......... ..........................................

Province..............................................................................

Place of service with Hudson's Bay Company

Length of time in service

This form may also be tilled up by representatives of 
retired servants of the Hudson’s Bay Company, setting forth 
their claims.




